
River Oaks History 

 

 

In the mid 1800’s, the River Mersey lapped the edges of the fields and 

woodland.  Milking cows grazed the fields from Woodend Farm in Garston and 

a small quarry was on site.  Three key homes feature in the immediate vicinity 

both on River Oaks and Mersey Road (originally Baileys Lane) - Briarley, The 

Beach, The Lawn.  All three houses appear on a local map of 1846 and were 

probably built in the early 1800's, possibly in the order, Briarley, The Beach and 

The Lawn. 
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Briarley 

 

Variously spelt Bryerley, Briarly and possibly confused with Briarfield. The 

house was built by John Abraham Tinne, a Dutch plantation owner from 

Demerara, around 1814 having settled in Liverpool.  His import business of 

molasses, sugar, coffee, cotton and hardwood timber, made his family a fortune.  

In partnership with Samuel Sandbach, the Tinne family ran a shipping line with 

17 vessels, Philip Tinne joining the company in 1813.  Briarley was situated on 

land from Aigburth Road, down Mersey Road (No3) on the left as far as the 

present railway line.  The estate stretched about halfway to the Cricket Club.  A 

smaller house, Mostyn (11 Mersey Road) was in the grounds and used by the 



Tinne family when Briarley became too expensive to maintain. J.A.Tinne was a 

JP and Deputy Lieutenant of Lancaster.  

 

          
                                               J.E.TINNE                                                        

  

 

Possibly the first ever WAG, was Emily Tinne, married to Dr Philip Tinne.  A 

compulsive 'shopaholic' it is estimated she spent between £90-100,000 in the 

1910’s-30's amassing a phenomenal collection of clothes, most of which were 

never worn!  When her daughter, Dr Alexinne Tinne, donated the entire 

wardrobe for viewing at Sudley House, and on to Liverpool Museum, most still 

had the 'tags' attached, including 30 fur coats!                                      

 

The Beach 

 

In 1911 the house was occupied by Gertrude Moss and her servants.  It is likely 

that she was a member of the 'notable' Moss family of Otterspool House.  The 

house was demolished by 1957.  The entrance is still visible off Mersey Road, 

designated by two sandstone pillars. (River Oaks Charity, who now own the 

woodland, installed new Iroko Hardwood Gates in 2019) The foundations of the 

greenhouse are visible off the woodland pathway a few yards from the exit to 

River Oaks field.  The dip at the bottom of the pathway was once a manicured 

round lawn.  A formal, and long, rose border featured to the left of the pathway  

exit to River Oaks field.  The present entrance to the woods, from the field, 

featured a gothic stone arch. 
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                                       THE BEACH & THE LAWN LAYOUT 



‘The Lawn’ 

 

The house, along with the lesser known ‘The Beach’, is possibly of most interest 

to residents and historians as it was situated in the woods which form part of the 

River Oaks estate.  It was probably built in the early 1800's.  Today the 

foundations lie directly behind No's 1-15 Marlcroft Drive.  Some of the stonework 

is clearly visible in the woods, and, whilst appearing like a gravestone, is most 

likely to be part of a fireplace or outbuilding situated in the 'coach-house' block 

to the rear of the main house, later a garage. Between the coach block and the 

house was a 'bothy' (later addition) - a basic building for use by gardeners, 

servants or even as simple accommodation.  Due to the proximity of ‘The Beach’ 

perimeter to ‘The Lawn’ it is not easy to delineate exactly who owned what, the 

Moss family or the Parker’s. 

 

Sometimes marked as ‘The Lawns’ or ‘The Plantation’, it was, for a time in the 

late 1800’s, the home of 1st Baronet Sir Robert Paterson Houston, sectarian 

Conservative MP for West Toxteth and owner of Houston Shipping Lines.  

Robert was born on the 31 May 1853, son of a maritime engineer from 

Renfrewshire.  After an apprenticeship in Liverpool, he also became an 

engineer.  It is uncertain when he first resided at ‘The Lawn’ but it is likely it 

was sold sometime prior to 1911 as the census that year reveals Evelyn Stuart 

Parker and Mary Elliott Parker as the residents. Given that Evelyn and Mary 

were married in 1898, it is possible they purchased the house from Robert 

Houston that year for their marital home.  The house was noted for its 

manicured lawns, walled garden, vines, orangery, and superb views across the 

river.   

 

In 1924, Robert, then 68 and a hard-headed bachelor, married Dame Fanny 

Lucy, Lady Byron, widow of the 9th Baron. Lucy was a serial ‘gold-digger’, 

juvenile actress, triple divorcee, adventuress, suffragette, philanthropist and, 

indirectly, the ‘Saviour’ of the Nation! (This is a fascinating story, best followed 

in a recent book ‘Adventuress - The life and loves of Lucy, Lady Houston’. The 

History Press 2020) Given Robert’s extreme wealth it is unsurprising that he 

was a tax exile in Jersey (did anyone know Jersey was a tax haven in the 

1920’s?) where Robert owned a stately mansion ‘Briarfield’ now changed to 

‘Landscape Farm’ and on the market in 2017 for £16million!  It is here Robert 

and Lucy resided, when not socialising on the Continent. 

                       

(I have not been able to track down a picture of ‘The Lawn’) 



                               
                                    ‘Briarfield’ in Jersey, now ‘Landscape Farm’ 

                  

                           

Not only was Sir Robert extremely wealthy but he owned ‘Liberty’ the largest 

steam yacht in the world.  Built originally for Joseph Pulitzer - yes that prize 

guy. Robert bought the yacht and spent most of his year entertaining royalty in 

the Mediterranean.  Less than two years after his marriage to Lucy, on 14th April      

1926, Robert died on his yacht, possibly in mysterious circumstances, off the 

Island of Jersey.  Overnight, Fanny Lucy became the second richest woman in 

England having inherited four-fifths of Robert’s £7 million fortune.  Using 

Robert’s money, Lucy funded the first flight over Mt Everest and, referencing 

‘Saviour of the Nation’, the development of the ‘later-to-be-famous’ 

Supermarine Spitfire ‘Merlin’ engine, putting in £100,000 when Prime Minister 

Stanley Baldwin refused to fund the project.  Lucy also purchased a right-wing 

weekly journal ‘Saturday Review’, to promote the strength of Britain and the 

Empire.  (For all the fine detail make sure you get the book)!   

 

                                
            LADY LUCY HOUSTON                                                 SIR ROBERT PATERSON HOUSTON 

 

    



              
            SIR ROBERT’S SHIPPING LINE                                          SIR ROBERT MP – WEST TOXTETH 

 

                                       

    
 
                                       STEAM YACHT ‘LIBERTY’ 

 

In 1952, Mary Parker, linked to the notable ‘Tinne’ family - up Mersey Road in 

Briarley - ceded The Lawn to Liverpool Corporation, the spiralling cost of 

renovations and repairs being prohibitive. The ‘Lodge House’ at the entrance to 

‘The Lawn’ is still in place on Mersey Road, with the old entrance bricked up 

just to the right. More of ‘The Lawn’ perimeter wall remains from the Lodge to 

the entrance to the present Marlcroft Drive. The road to ‘The Lawn’ would have 

loosely followed the present Lawnhurst Grove on River Oaks estate. 

 

                     



                   
 

                                     The Lawn Lodge – Mersey Road 

 

Riversdale College was built on site in 1952 and extended over a number of 

years. Following the ceding to LCC ‘The Lawn’ was used as classrooms for the 

training of Nautical Engineers, and later as an admin centre, until both college 

and house were demolished by builders Wimpey in 2003-4. 
                                                          

      
 

      
 

    College and Engineering Block 
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                  Demolition 2003                           The tree in the picture still stands!  

 

Riversdale College layout 1952 
 

 
PRESENT DAY POSITION – RIVER OAKS ROADS 

 

Blocks A & B & Canteen approximately Daneshill Close/Marlcroft Drive 

Blocks C & D approximately Chatbrook Close/Marlcroft Drive 

Blocks E/F & G approximately Capella Close/Marlcroft Drive 

The Lawn approximately No 17-25 Marlcroft Drive 

Alma Rd Wall 
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Block A,B & Canteen opened in 1952. Other  

blocks opened in alphabetical order 



                                                  

                                THE LAWN – COLLEGE ADMIN 

 

In the 70’s and 80’s, with the demise of all South Liverpool docks, the change 

of maritime directions from Liverpool to Europe and Containerisation, 

Riversdale College was unable to sustain nautical and engineering courses due 

to the rapidly decreasing demand.  Increasingly, new courses were added and 

the college became a ‘Community College’ and a change of name to Liverpool 

Community College.  To complete the shift of emphasis, the site was 

subsequently sold to Wimpey.    

  

RIVER OAKS RESIDENT’S ASSOCIATION 2010 – 2017 

RIVER OAKS CHARITY 1175908 2017 – 2021f   

                         

In 2003-4 Wimpey built the River Oaks Estate and Riverside Park - the adjoining 

apartments.  A management company took over the maintenance of River Oaks 

but failed miserably in their responsibilities to maintain pond, play area, field and 

woodland.  By 2009 the pond arena was little more than a ‘trolley park’, algae 

ridden, smelly, unattractive, colourless and lifeless.  12 years of intensive work, 

first by River Oaks Resident’s Association (2010-2017) then River Oaks Charity 

(2017f), has resulted in substantial transformation.  The pond is a multi-award- 

winning site.  After ten years of fighting the mis-management company, ROC 

gained 18.7 acres of field and woodland.  In 2019 £45,000 was raised to install a 

new toddler’s play area and £30,000 raised to begin the woodland transformation 

by installing quality gates on the Mersey Road entrance and 150 metres of steel 

fencing to secure the river side border. In 2020, a 2-acre wild flower meadow was 

planted on the field in partnership with Scouse Flowerhouse and LCC. Due to the 

extensive rot on the pond decking ROC is presently raising finance to install a 



new viewing and community-use terrace at the pond.  Throughout the past 12 

years ‘caring for the environment and creating community’ has been at the heart  

of the work.  Community events, both for resident’s and friends, have grown 

significantly along with visitors attracted by the pond and field beauty. 

 

 

 

     
 

                                                                     

 
 

   
                                                                                

     

 

For detailed information on the River Oaks Charity 1175908, go to ‘The Journey’ 

Awards, Commendations, Gallery and Latest newsletter.    
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